

333 Aviation Road, Building B Queensbury, NY 12804

112 Spring Street, Suite 307 Saratoga Springs, NY 12866

P: (518) 792-0918 F: (518) 743-0882 www.wdrcpa.com

February 8, 2016

To the Board of Directors
Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of the Glens Fall Civic Development Corporation, a component unit of the City of Glens Falls, New York for the year ended December 31, 2015. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and, *Government Auditing Standards*, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated January 14, 2016. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting policies used by the Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation are described in the notes to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2015. We noted no transactions entered into by the Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. There we no adjustments for 2015.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation letter dated February 8, 2016.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to Management's Discussion and Analysis, which is required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Whittemore, Dowen & Ricciardelli, LIP

Whittemore, Dowen & Ricciardelli, LLP

GLENS FALLS CIVIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION GLENS FALLS, NEW YORK

Independent Auditor's Report Financial Statements And Supplementary Information

Year Ended December 31, 2015



Table of Contents

	Page
Independent Auditor's Report	1-2
Management's Discussion and Analysis	3-5
Financial Statements	
Statement of Net Position	6
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position	7
Statement of Cash Flows	8
Notes to Financial Statements	9-11
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance	
With Government Auditing Standards	12-13



333 Aviation Road, Building B Queensbury, NY 12804

112 Spring Street, Suite 307 Saratoga Springs, NY 12866

P: (518) 792-0918 F: (518) 743-0882 www.wdrcpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Board of Directors
Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation
Glens Falls. New York

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation, a component unit of the City of Glens Falls, New York, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities of the Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation, a component unit of the City of Glens Falls, New York, as of December 31, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis on pages 3-5 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated February 8, 2016 on our consideration of the Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Whittemore, Dowen & Ricciardelli, LLP

Whittemore, Dowen & Ricciardelli, LLP Queensbury, New York

February 8, 2016

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our discussion and analysis of the Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation's financial performance provide an overview of the Agency's financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015. Please read it in conjunction with the Agency's financial statements.

HIGHLIGHTS

Financial Highlights:

- Although the Agency was incorporated in 2011, there was no activity until 2015.
- Cash and cash equivalents increased by \$10,500 during 2015 mainly because the Agency had a large project during 2015, and operating revenues exceeded expenses by \$10,500.
- During 2015, total revenues exceeded total expenses, resulting in an increase in net assets of \$10,500.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of three parts: Management's Discussion and Analysis, Financial Statements and footnotes. The notes explain in more detail some of the information in the Financial Statements.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Agency's financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Agency Financial Statements. The Agency's *financial statements* are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Agency's finances.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Agency's assets and liabilities with the difference between the two reported as *net position*. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indication of whether the financial position of the Agency is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how the Agency's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Notes to Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the Agency's financial statements.

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government agency's financial position. In the case of the Agency, assets exceeded liabilities by \$10,500 as of December 31, 2015.

The following tables present a summary of the Agency's derivation of net position for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

	2015		2014	
Total Current Assets	\$	10,500	\$	
Total Assets		10,500		-
Total Liabilities				
Unrestricted		10,500		
Total Net Position	\$	10,500	\$	-

Changes in the Agency's net position can be determined by reviewing the following condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position at the end of the year.

	 2015		2014	
Total Operating Revenues Total Operating Expenses Non-Operating Income	\$ 150,500 (140,000)	\$	- - -	
Increase (decrease) in Net Position	10,500		-	
Net Position at Beginning of Year	 			
Net Position at End of Year	\$ 10,500	\$	_	

CASH AND INVESTMENT POLICY

The Agency finds it necessary to place funds in various deposit accounts or certificates of deposit. Article 18A, Section 858(14) of the State General Municipal Law authorizes the Agency to designate depositories. In accordance with this article, one bank is designated as a depository for the Agency's funds. Rates are competitively procured for deposits.

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

CONTACTING THE AGENCY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers and creditors with a general overview of the Agency's finances and to demonstrate the Agency's accountability for the money it receives. The CEO's annual report provides additional information about the Agency's 2015 activities and future plans. If you have any questions about this report, would like to review the CEO's annual report, or need additional financial information, contact the agency at 518-761-3833 or by mail: Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation, 42 Ridge Street, Glens Falls, New York 12801.

Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2015

ASSETS

Current Assets:	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 10,500
Total Current Assets	10,500
Total Guitent Assets	 10,500
Total Assets	 10,500
NET POSITION	
Unrestricted	10,500
Total Net Position	\$ 10,500

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Operating Revenues: Charges for services	\$ 150,500
Operating Expenses: Contractual expenses	140,000
Total Operating Expenses	 140,000
Operating Income	 10,500
Increase in Net Position	10,500
Net Position - Beginning of Year	
Net Position - End of Year	\$ 10,500

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: Cash received from providing services Cash payments for contractual expenses	\$ 150,500 (140,000)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities	10,500
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents	10,500
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year	
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year	\$ 10,500
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: Net Operating Income	\$ 10,500
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities	\$ 10,500

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The summary of significant accounting policies of the Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation (the Agency) is presented to assist in understanding the Agency's financial statements. The financial statements and notes are representations of the Agency's management, which is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America and have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

Organization and Purpose

The Agency was created in 2011 by the Common Council of the City of Glens Falls, New York to operate independently for the purpose of encouraging economic growth within the City of Glens Falls. The Agency is a Component Unit of the City of Glens Falls. The purposes of the Agency are to relieve and reduce unemployment, bettering and maintaining job opportunities, aiding the Glens Falls area by attracting new industry and encouraging the development of industry, specifically related to not-for-profit corporations.

The Agency accomplishes its purposes through arranging for issuance of tax-exempt bonds on behalf of non-profit civic organizations and assisting those organizations through grants of funds and loans to further qualified municipal, governmental, public, quasi-public and civic projects in the greater Glens Falls, Warren County area.

Enterprise Fund

The Agency records it transactions in this proprietary-type fund, which is used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent is that costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the agency are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. The Agency distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues are determined based on the services provided by the Agency. Operating expenses include the costs associated with providing those services. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Income Taxes

The Agency, although established by the Common Council of the City of Glens Falls, operates as an independent entity and is exempt from federal, state and local income taxes.

Bad Debts

The Agency uses the direct write-off method for recording amounts deemed uncollectible. Generally accepted accounting principles require that the allowance method be used to reflect bad debts. However, the effect of the use of the direct write-off method is not materially different from the results that would have been obtained had the allowance method been followed.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Agency considers all checking, savings and certificates of deposit accounts with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows.

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – Continued

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Net Position

The Agency is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to a net position format (assets plus deferred outflows of resources less liabilities less deferred inflows of resources) and shown with three components: net amounts invested in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted. The entire net position is unrestricted at December 31, 2015.

It is the Agency's policy to first use restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are available.

Future Impacts of Accounting Pronouncements

The Agency has not completed the process of evaluating the impact that will result from adopting GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, GASB Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments, and GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures. These pronouncements were not effective as of December 31, 2015. The Agency is, therefore, unable to disclose the impact that adopting these pronouncements will have on the financial position and results of operations in the future.

Civic Revenue Bond and Note Transactions

Civic development revenue bonds and notes issued by the Agency are secured by property. The bonds and notes are not obligations of the Agency or the State of New York. The Agency does not record the assets or liabilities resulting from completed bond and note issues in its accounts since its primary function is to arrange the financing between the borrowing companies and the bond and note holders, and funds arising therefrom are controlled by trustees or banks acting as fiscal agents.

The Agency receives an administration fee calculated as a percentage of the amount of bonds issued or cost of the project in the case of a straight lease transaction, in addition to reimbursements for any legal costs incurred by the Agency. Such administrative fee income is recognized immediately upon the closing of the project.

Civic development revenue bonds and notes issued by the Agency which remain outstanding at December 31, 2015, are as follows:

Bonds issued for the Glens Falls Hospital construction project with interest at 2.83%. Interest is paid monthly and principal payments are due annually in the amount of \$3,350,000, maturing on December 1, 2034

\$ 63,650,000

Total bonds outstanding

\$ 63,650,000

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

Cash and Investments

The Agency's investment policies are governed by State statutes. Agency monies must be deposited in FDIC-insured commercial banks or trust companies located within the State. The treasurer is authorized to use demand accounts and certificates of deposit. Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of New York State or its localities. At December 31, 2015, the Agency had no investments.

Collateral is required for demand and time deposits and certificates of deposit not covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral include obligations guaranteed by the government of the United States or by the State of New York and obligations issued by a municipal corporation or school district of such State.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Agency's deposits may not be returned to it. While the Agency does not have a specific policy for custodial credit risk, New York State statutes govern the Agency's investment policies, as described above.

The Agency's aggregate bank balances were covered by depository insurance at year-end.

The Agency does not typically purchase investments for a long enough duration to cause it to believe that it is exposed to any material interest rate risk. The Agency does not typically purchase investments denominated in a foreign currency, and is not exposed to foreign currency risk.

Related Party

The Agency is related to the Greater Glens Falls Local Development Corporation and the City of Glens Falls Industrial Development Agency in that they have interlocking board of directors and they are all component units of the City of Glens Falls. During the year ended December 31, 2015 the Agency did not provide funding to the Greater Glens Falls Local Development Corporation and provided \$140,000 of funding to the City of Glens Falls Industrial Development Agency through a memorandum of agreement.

Subsequent Event

The Agency has evaluated all events through February 8, 2016, the date which these financial statements were available to be issued, and determined that there are no subsequent events which require disclosure.



333 Aviation Road, Building B Queensbury, NY 12804

112 Spring Street, Suite 307 Saratoga Springs, NY 12866

P: (518) 792-0918 F: (518) 743-0882 www.wdrcpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To The Board of Directors Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation Glens Falls, New York

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation, a component unit of the City of Glens Falls, New York, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 8, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Glens Falls Civic Development Corporation's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Whittemore, Dowen & Ricciardelli, LLP

Whittemore, Dowen & Ricciardelli, LLP Queensbury, New York

February 8, 2016